Board of Selectmen
Meeting Minutes
April 23, 2025

Present: James Bailey — Chairman, Iris Campbell — Selectwoman, Richard Pelletier - Selectman
and Laura Buono, Town Administrator

Others are present: David Seymour, Ernie Butler, Jacob Learn

Meeting opened at 6:00 pm
Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No comments.

2. DAVID SEYMOUR —104 BIBLE HILL ROAD

Mr. Seymour explained that on February 18" a tree came down on his property. He said Eversource
showed up and cut the tree up and threw the material into the snow near where it fell from his
property. Mr. Seymour claims that when the snow melted, pieces of the tree rolled close to the
road. He said on March 13" when he returned home from work, he found the fallen tree was taken
from his property and the four trees along the road had been trimmed back and now they need to
be replaced. He showed the Board a photo from Google Earth of the trees, which he claims was
taken in June of 2024. Ms. Buono noted that the trees in the photo looked quite a bit fuller and lush
than the trees on his property, even before they had been trimmed back. Mr. Seymour said he
wants the trees replaced and had brough in quotes totaling over $4,000 for new trees.

Road Agent Ernie Butler said dispatch they Highway Department had received several calls from
dispatch because people were complaining that the tree branches were scratching their cars as they
drove by and when inspected, they found that they had grown out into the travel way. He said that
two crew members went out to manually trim the trees in the manner they were trained to do it.
Tree branches like that get trimmed close to the trunk. He said while they were there, they also
picked up the fallen tree.

Chairman Bailey added that the town’s right-of-way on that road is two feet. Mr. Seymour said if
he had been contacted about the trees, he would have moved them himself. Mr. Butler said he
went over to speak with him twice, yet he wasn’t home so he left his business card so that Mr.
Seymour would call him. Selectman Pelletier asked Mr. Seymour what he was looking for as
compensation. Mr. Seymour said it will cost $500 per tree plus planting. Ms. Buono suggested
that if Mr. Seymour stated that he was willing to move these small trees, then it wouldn’t make
any sense for the Town to pay to plant new ones. Selectman Pelletier asked if the town purchased
the trees and had them delivered, would that be satisfactory. Mr. Seymour said yes. The Board
will look into it and Mr. Butler will contact an arborist to get their opinion on the condition of the
trees regarding the trimming done. Selectman Pelletier reiterated that the Town has the right to do
work in the right-of-way, especially for vehicle safety.

3. MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Bailey made a motion to approve the meeting minutes dated April 9, 2025. Selectman
Pelletier seconded the motion, the motion passed.
Page 1 of 4 — April 23, 2025



4. MANIFEST

Chairman Bailey made a motion to authorize the Selectmen to sign manifests and order the
Treasurer to sign Payroll Check numbers 20083 — 20107 a/k/a VVouchers 16 & 17 in the amount of
$221,499.51 (includes 208 direct deposit stubs) and Accounts Payable Check numbers 033709 —
033789 a/k/a Voucher 14 & 15 in the amount of $1,088,529.19. Selectman Pelletier seconded the
motion, the motion passed.

** A/P Checks include payment to HDSD in the amount of $905,640.46
5. CONSENT AGENDA

Chairman Bailey made a motion to approve motion to approve the Consent Agenda for April 23,
2025. Selectman Pelletier seconded the motion, the motion passed.

Veterans’ Disability Credit — Map 25 Lot 42

Woodheating Energy System Exemption — Map 6 Lot 33

Solar Energy System Exemption — Map 11J Lot 392

Intent to Cut — Map 10 Lot 21 (Sulpher Hill Road); Map 10 Lot 35 (Sulpher Hill Road)
Intent to Excavate — Map 7 Lot 190; Map 10 Lot 63

Department of Revenue MS-232

6. MANAHAN PARK

Ms. Buono reported that this year, there will be lifeguards on duty for the weekends at our beach.
She also asked if the Board was ready to discuss whether they wanted to charge a fee for people
who are not residents of Hillsborough as was brought up by the Parks Director during budget
season. The Board discussed a fee for out-of-town users at Manahan Park and Ms. Buono said that
in speaking with Mr. Clough, they both felt that using the same fee structure as the State would fit
the description of a “reasonable fee”, which is $4.00/person. The Board agreed and is willing to
give it a try and will allow Mr. Clough discretion as to the method used to establish verification of
residency. Ms. Buono also verified that these fees also apply to Deering residents since they are
not part of the recreation amount the Town pays Hillsborough. The Board said “non-resident”
includes Deering. The fees collected will be deposited in the established revolving fund for Parks
& Recreation.

7. SUMMERFEST

Ms. Buono said that she wanted to give the Board a heads up about the fee that is being charged
for the Summerfest this year. She said in the past, the fee was worded that the charge was $500/
event but that changed to $500/day. Initially that was the plan for the fees and it’s basically what
happens since events are typically only one day. She said the Summerfest Committee has paid
$500 for the entire week due to that wording, and now they will be charged for 7 days with the
total being $3,500. In the past, what was collected didn’t cover some of the damage that has been
done to the fields. Ms. Buono also brought up that Mr. Clough said that it would be nice if they
would fix up the electrical box that they own since it’s looking worn.

Page 2 of 4 — April 23, 2025



8. TRANSFER STATION PAVING

Ms. Buono presented the price quotes for the paving of the Transfer Station parking lot. She said
that Advance Paving came in with the lowest cost at $134,400.00. The Board reviewed the quotes
and was wondering if the facility would have to be closed in order to have the work done. Ms.
Buono said that until the work is scheduled, we won’t know if it will be closed one day. Chairman
Bailey made a motion to accept the Advance Paving contract in the amount of $134,400.
Selectwomen Campbell seconded the motion, the motion passed.

9. WATER & SEWER DEPARTMENT

Ms. Buono brought up the loan application process for the grant/loan through the Drinking Water
State Revolving Fund which was passed at Town meeting and which Penny Griffin asked her to
provide documentation for. She said it will require her signature on it since the Commissioners
cannot borrow money because the Water & Sewer Department is a department of the Town. She
said the fact that the loan documentation is being signed by her even though she has no oversight
of the expenditures and requests for funds in conjunction with it, makes no sense and is another
reason that this department should be run like every other department in the town. Ms. Buono said
the extent of her knowledge on this project, is the same as the Selectboard and was gained by the
briefing that the Commissioners gave. She said at least with projects done by all the other
departments, she meets regularly with the department heads and gets information on them and has
a good understanding as to the status and the ongoing costs and expenditures.

Ms. Buono said the Board will have to make a motion to authorize her to sign the documentation
associated with the loan. Chairman Bailey made a motion to authorize the Town Administrator,
Laura Buono to sign the final application for the loan agreement, as well as sign required
documentation for the funds from the loan and loan disbursement requests through the Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund. Selectman Pelletier seconded the motion, the motion passed.

Selectman Pelletier said he attended a water commissioner meeting recently to ask the
Commissioners why there was no negotiation between them and the Hillsborough Heights
developer on the fees for the next phase. He said the bottom line is that the Commissioners believe
if they negotiate with anyone to reduce their costs, the rate payers are subsidizing the negotiated
cost, and this development has no advantage for the rate payers. Selectman Pelletier said he
disagrees with that. He said the connection fee for the development is $148,000 and the developer
feels that cost is too high and is now changing the plan to install a septic system instead and
reducing the amount of future housing that was planned. The concept that the current users would
be subsidizing any reduction is hookup fees was discussed, and the Board doesn’t feel these types
of fees have anything to do with the current users.

The Board talked about Ms. Buono’s suggestion that Hillsborough could use a Public Works
Director to manage the many projects and grants for projects, as well as oversee the Highway and
Transfer Station and if the Board decides to approach the idea of bringing the W&S Commission
under their direction, that department as well. Ms. Buono said that she is currently overseeing
these departments and with the number of projects she is involved in, she isn’t able to get to a lot
of the items that need attention. Hillsborough isn’t a small town anymore and due it being a
regional hub, more growth is inevitable and having someone with an engineering background
would be beneficial and much more cost effective moving forward. The Board will continue to
discuss this idea.

Page 3 of 4 — April 23, 2025



Meeting adjourned at 7:25 pm

A true record
Mary Whalen
Recording Secretary

Approved by:
Hillsborough Selectboard

James C. Bailey, Ill, Chairman

Iris Campbell, Selectwoman

Richard Pelletier, Selectman

Page 4 of 4 — April 23, 2025

Date:




